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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006

(Time Noted – 7:10PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called to step forward, state the request and explain why it should be granted. The Board may then ask questions of the applicant. The public will then be invited to make comments. We will try to make a decision this evening; however, we have up to 62 days to make a decision. And, I would ask that if anyone has cell phones, if you would please turn the cell phone off. And, also anyone who is speaking, please speak into the microphone so that it can be recorded into a tape. And, I’d like to start by welcoming a new Board Member. Brenda Drake welcome to the Board. 

Ms. Drake: Thank you.

Ms. Gennarelli takes Roll Call for Attendance. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY

ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006                              (Time Noted – 7:12 PM) 

STEPHEN P. COTICH


37 HICKORY HILL ROAD, NBGH







(34-1-8.1)  R-3 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking a special permit for home occupations use variance to operate as a Firearms Consultant and Firearms and Ammunition Retailer.

Chairperson Cardone: The first item on the agenda this evening, Stephen P. Cotich at 37 Hickory Hill Road. Would you please step up to the microphone? Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, the mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: If you would state your request, please.

Mr. Cotich: My request is for a Special Permit for a Home Occupational business. It’s a firearms retailer and consultant. 

Chairperson Cardone: Will you have any employees? 

Mr. Cotich: No.

Chairperson Cardone: And, what would be your hours of operation? 

Mr. Cotich: The hours that I’ve been keeping usually run 9AM to 9PM.

Chairperson Cardone: Do any of the Board Members have questions?

Ms. Eaton: Will there be any traffic generated from this home occupation?

Mr. Cotich: Nothing that’s out of the ordinary as it is right now, no.

Ms. Eaton: How many people would be there at one time?

Mr. Cotich: Could be one or two.

Ms. Eaton: Do you have parking available?

Mr. Cotich: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: And, do you have to be licensed by any State or Federal Agencies?

Mr. Cotich: I have to have a Federal License which I already have from ATF and also a New York State Dealers License to deal with the sale of handguns.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Cotich, do you have at all in your basement an area where you test fire at all or do any test firing in the home in the basement at all?

Mr. Cotich: No.

Mr. Manley: Do you do any test firing on the property?

Mr. Cotich: No.

Mr. Manley: O.K. where will any test firings for the weapons be conducted?

Mr. Cotich: Not on that premises, if at all it would be at a, probably an indoor range.

Mr. Manley: O.K. another question with regard to the handling of gun powder on the premises. How much gun powder will be stored, will you be doing reloading at all of ammunition on the premises?

Mr. Cotich: No reloading, just ammunition. Usually the ammunition is just based on per orders. It might be a small amount of inventory, but not an excessive amount of to worry about.

Mr. Manley: How many rounds do you anticipate keeping on premises at any one time?

Mr. Cotich: Could be up to 1000 rounds or more.

Ms. Eaton: Why would you operate from 9 to 9, you could limit those hours?

Mr. Cotich: I’ve been in the business for around 16 years now and I had hours 9 to 9 because I do work another job, I work shifts. So, it’s, I am home at different times. So I kind of leave the hours open that way.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you.

Mr. Kunkel: What type of security would you provide should this be granted?

Mr. Cotich: There will be a gun safe in the home and there will also be a security system on the home.

Mr. Kunkel: Directly into the Police Department?

Mr. Cotich: Unsure of that right now.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a bunker for ammunition of any sort in design for your basement or somewhere on the property to store that stuff or will it be stored in the house?

Mr. Cotich: Most likely in the basement or in the garage area.

Mr. Hughes: No bunker of any sort?

Mr. Cotich: No bunker.

Ms. Eaton: Do you have children in your home?

Mr. Cotich: No.

Mr. Hughes: I see you are here for a Special Use Permit and I read the definitions of a special use permit but I am not sure that this is even the right category of play here for what you are looking to do. One of the concerns that I have with this and I’ll read it to you from the book, this is written by the Law Professors that were commissioned to write the land use for the State of New York. What it has to say is, once a Special Permit has been issued, this is on page 106, once a Special Permit has been issued it is not personal to the applicant but affixes to and runs with the ownership of the land. And, to me, I don’t feel comfortable with the fact that, what would there be to prevent you from getting this permit and continuing your operation and then flipping it over to a bigger concern who might come in and bring in who knows what.

Mr. Cotich: I couldn’t do that, the premises would be licensed to me only or anybody that I might have working for me, say my wife. But right now the licensing would be only with my name and it would be licensed to that premises. It’s not interchangeable to anybody else.

Mr. Hughes: I understand that part of it.

Mr. Cotich: Hm, hmm.

Mr. Hughes: But, now take a look at this part of it. Suppose you get a guy who wants to buy your business and he has a license and he comes into that same particular building and does 100 times of what you’re doing, once you have the land and the Use Permit, what’s to prevent that from happening? 

Mr. Cotich: I would have to put that in writing that that wouldn’t happen.

Mr. Hughes: You’re not adverse to a condition of that nature? 

Mr. Cotich: No.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else. Thank you for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a report from the Orange County Department of Planning. Since the residence is within 500 ft of the New York State Thruway this was sent to the Orange County Planning Department and I will read their comments.

To be entitled to a use variance, an applicant must satisfy the unnecessary hardship standard.  The courts of New York hold that the unnecessary hardship standard is satisfied by competent proof of each of the following:

1) the land in question cannot yield a reasonable return, in dollars and cents, if used for any use permitted in the zone,

2) the use to be authorized by the variance will not alter the essential character of the locality,

3) the hardship is unique to the parcel and not general throughout the zoning district, and

4) the hardship is not self-created.

In this case, it is evident that a reasonable return is being realized and that the requested variance is merely for the added enjoyment of the property in question for a retail use not permitted in the R-3 District of the Town of Newburgh.  As a result, a use variance is not justified. We also caution that this may set precedence in the possible amount of home occupation / retail that could result in the Town based upon the Board’s decision. 

Mr. Manley: I just have one other question and that would be, have you looked at any other areas in the Town in which to operate a small office or a small operation like this at all?

Mr. Cotich: No, I moved down to this area from Greene County and upon moving I needed to change the address of the License. And, ATF came in; the Compliance Officer came in and did a 3-hour inspection. According to ATF I meet their requirements. As a Home Business, I do have an office in the home for that business. 

Mr. Manley: So, the business already exists?

Mr. Cotich: The business existed in Greene County for a number of years; it’s just that because I moved here and I applied to change the address on the License, they did an inspection. Upon the inspection, they O.K.’d it based on the Zoning. There is no problem with ATF at all on how I am going to run the business.

Mr. McKelvey: You’re not going to put any signs on the property?

Mr. Cotich: No, not right now. If there was a sign, it would have been a small sign but, no.

Mr. McKelvey: Because I see you say no large signs.

Mr. Cotich: No large signs or nothing.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Cotich: Thank you.                                                   (Time Noted - 7: 18 PM)

ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:30 PM)

STEPHEN P. COTICH


37 HICKORY HILL ROAD, NBGH







(34-1-8.1)  R-3 ZONE 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the first application of Stephen P. Cotich at 37 Hickory Hill Road, seeking a Special Permit for Home Occupations Use variance to operate as a Firearms Consultant and Firearms and Ammunition Retailer. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: He’s not in compliance with the requirements for the criteria for either of the Use or the Special Use Permit. 

Chairperson Cardone: This is an Unlisted Action under SEQRA. Do I have a motion for a negative declaration?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion for a negative declaration.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye - All.

Chairperson Cardone: Those opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  That motion is carried. Discussion on this application? I think as the Orange County Department of Planning pointed out the five criteria necessary were not met. I think definitely it would change the character of the neighborhood. I don’t see a financial hardship. Any other discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: The hardship being not self-created, I mean, he is creating the hardship by operating a retail establishment out of that location.

Mr. Hughes: We’ve also been put on notice about its precedential appearance by the County and because if you grant a use of that nature it stays with the property, I would be concerned about granting that variance. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval on this application?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Kunkel: Second. 

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call.


John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Motion for disapproval is carried. 

(Time Noted – 9:33 PM)



ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006


(Time Noted – 7:18 PM)

MICHAEL O’BRIEN



59 NORTH FOSTERTOWN RD, NBGH







(17-2-36) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances to build a 2nd story addition for the front and side yards setbacks increasing the degree of non-conformity and an interpretation.                                                                

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Michael O’Brien, 59 North Fostertown Road. Are the mailings in order? 

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, the mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: The microphone does come off the stand if you need to walk around.

Mr. Brown: Hello, I am Charles Brown the engineer for the applicant. This is an existing lot that had an existing residence on it. The proposed work is to renovate that and put a second floor on the rear of the addition. We are not extending beyond the limits of the existing building as it stands right now which is why I asked for the interpretation because I never had to go for a variance for this when we are just going up. The building is pre-existing, existed before current zoning, actually dated back to the late 1800’s. The lot parameters all existed before the renovation and addition will be an improvement to the neighborhood so there is no negative impact to the adjoining properties or the community and this was the least impactful way to go about doing what the applicant wanted to do with the property. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, the height of the building upon completion would be?

Mr. Brown: 26 feet.

Chairperson Cardone: And, presently the height of the building would is?

Mr. Brown: It’s about 20 right now. The addition is going again on the rear portion of the building, which was shorter.

Chairperson Cardone: We have been at the site.

Mr. Brown: Yeah, that was shorter than the front.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? 

Mr. Mc Kelvey: You are staying in this footprint of the old building, right?

Mr. Brown: Actually, the back of the addition we are cantilevering 2 foot but that’s not in non-compliance. I do have plans for the proposed addition if you’d like to see those.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I see there’s a question about non-conformity, the furtherance of the non-conformity by the addition of a second story. What’s your opinion of that?

Mr. Brown: Well, I just never as long as we stayed within the footprint of an existing building, I’ve never been sent to Zoning Board for a variance. So, this is a new interpretation by the Building Department and I just wanted to get it clarified with the Zoning Board.

Mr. Hughes: Have you had any correspondence with the Building Department since these other lengthy letters took place.

Mr. Brown: I’ve talked to Joe Mattina, yes.

Mr. Hughes: And, do you have a line item of the request that was asked by Mr. O’Brien to define those discrepancies or are we still (inaudible)  the October 11th letter, could you address what had that had to say? Do you have anything subsequent to the October 11th letter?

Chairperson Cardone: There is one on the 14th.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t have a copy of that.

Chairperson Cardone: That will address some of it.

Mr. Brown: The original plans submitted for a Building Permit were stamped and did have all the (inaudible) repairs and all that on it.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you just step, excuse me, just take the microphone and talk into the microphone.

Mr. Brown: So, the original drawings which I’m assuming we submitted with the package, if not, I have them here and they do detail all repairs to the existing framework and all the proposed work and they were stamped. So, I don’t know if there was some confusion with the Building Department or what not. But, we do have everything that he’s requesting except for, obviously the variance. I did ask him, twice, to meet me out in the field because again this is a new one to me having to get a variance when we are just going vertical. So, I wanted to get an explanation from Joe himself.

Mr. Hughes: I have 14th letter here now, it says that this application is for the second floor addition; there is no application for alterations.

Mr. Brown: It’s all on the same plans, I’ll clarify, I’ll clean that up with Joe.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. Brown: The existing portion of the building that’s remaining has a per current code, has a substandard ceiling height. This falls under renovation, reconstruction which is sub-chapter K of the Building Code. That permits the existing sub-standard ceiling heights to continue. So, I would have to sit with Joe again to clean up the application. But all information is on the construction documents, the Building Plans.

Mr. Hughes: Just for your information and the rest of the public, all the Board Members go out to the sites and look at everything around not only that property, but the properties around it as well.

Mr. Brown: And, we appreciate that.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else, thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, state your name and address.

Mr. O’Brien: I am the owner, Michael O’Brien 337 Pressler Road, what Mr. Brown did not tell the Board is the addition would bring this into compliance as far as the square footage required in the Zone and the Building Permit (application) that I submitted was marked for alterations on the application as well as the addition.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any other questions or comments from the public? Anything further from the Board? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Brown: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:27 PM)

ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:33 PM)

MICHAEL O’BRIEN



59 NORTH FOSTERTOWN RD, NBGH







(17-2-36) A/R ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Michael O’Brien at 59 North Fostertown Road seeking first an interpretation. The interpretation was of  185 …

Mr. Manley: 185 – 19 – C – 1?

Chairperson Cardone: 185 – 19 – C – 1. Do we have discussion on this interpretation? My understanding of 185-19-C-1 is that if the structure were 12 ft high, 12 ft would be the non-conforming and if we went up another 12 ft that would increase the degree of non-conformity.

Mr. Hughes: Because it’s in the setbacks?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. I don’t know how the other Board Members feel  but …

Mr. Hughes: I concur with that opinion.

Ms. Eaton: Yes, I also do. 

Mr. Manley: I would say that’s pretty consistent with how, at least since I’ve been on the Board and my knowledge of the past with the Zoning Board, that they have always ruled that to be the case. 

Mr. Hughes: I would have to concur here prior to that would be concurrent with that type of ruling.

Chairperson Cardone: All right. So, on the interpretation then, we are saying that we interpret that to say that we are increasing the degree of non-conformity? Those in agreement, please indicate by saying Aye.

Aye – All.

Chairperson Cardone: In disagreement, Nay.

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: So, it is the feeling of this Board that that is the interpretation. Aye.

Going to that then, the applicant is seeking an area variance for the front and side yard setbacks. That is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on that application?

Chairperson Cardone: Any discussion on that application? I think that the construction would be an improvement to the property.

Mr. McKelvey: I think going up is a better way of solving the problem.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other discussion on this application? Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll move for approval.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll Call vote.

Ms. Gennarelli: 


John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 9:37 PM)



ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006


(Time Noted – 7:27 PM)

JAMES McLAUGHLIN


1 RATHMORE ROAD, MARLBORO 






(8-1-106) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances to keep a pool in the front yards.                                                        

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is James McLaughlin, 1 Rathmore Road, Marlboro.  

Ms. Gennarelli: He is not here tonight. He didn’t have his mailings in order, he made a mistake about the dates so he withdrew.

(Time Noted – 7:28 PM)

ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006


(Time Noted – 7:28 PM)

PAT MARONEY 


391 LAKESIDE ROAD, NBGH  







(33-1-10.2) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for side yards setbacks and increasing the degree of non-conformity and maximum building lot coverage to build a 2-story addition, garage and rear addition to home.                                                        

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Pat Maroney, 391 Lakeside Road. Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: The mailings are in order.

Mr. Maroney: Hello, my name is Patrick Maroney. I am currently living at 391 Lakeside Road, on Orange Lake. When I first purchased my lake house, I used if for summer recreation only. I have moved in and made it my permanent residence. Currently the house has a small kitchen, one bathroom and a small bedroom. I am planning on putting on a small addition, which would give me a living room, a larger bedroom and one additional bathroom and a 1-car garage. I am requesting an area variance including side yard setbacks and rear yard setbacks. I am aware that I will be exceeding the maximum lot coverage and the bulk tables. The practical difficulty is the cottage dates back to the 1800’s and was built for a summer home. Orange Lake has turned into a year round community. I intend to make this my year round home and it has to be brought up to today’s standards. In doing this I am, in fact, keeping with the character of the neighborhood because all the similar changes being accomplished at the Lake. My closest neighbors are here tonight and they support me on my renovation. I have some pictures here that demonstrate a number of houses on the Lake with similar circumstances and a lot of tighter tolerances than my home will have. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. Manley: Is this home currently hooked up to Town water and sewer?

Mr. Maroney: Yes, it is. 

Mr. Manley: For both?

Mr. Maroney: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Any, you are not increasing the amount of bathrooms at all?

Mr. Maroney: One more bathroom.

Mr. Manley: So, that will be two full baths?

Mr. Maroney: One half bath.

Ms. Eaton: An additional bedroom?

Mr. Maroney: No, just still one bedroom.

Ms. Eaton: Just the one bedroom.

Mr. Maroney: Just a larger bedroom.

Ms. Eaton: That shed that’s on the property, is that yours or is it?

Mr. Maroney: No. That’s my neighbor, Neighbor #1  .

Ms. Eaton: And, you are going to add a deck out towards the Lake?

Mr. Maroney: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: How close to the Lake will you come?

Mr. Maroney: Approximately 50 feet.

Ms. Eaton: You’ll be 50 feet from the Lake?

Mr. Maroney: Yes, and it won’t be in the view of the neighbors. It wouldn’t be blocking any views.

Mr. Manley: Could you maybe tell me how many square feet you will be adding onto the house in total? 

Mr. Klein: My name is Jay Klein, architect working for Pat Maroney.

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you use the microphone please Mr. Klein. It comes off the stand. Thank you.

Mr. Klein: The existing cottage is approximately 650 sq ft and we’re adding about approximately 1100 sq ft which encompasses a garage in the front yard which goes toward Lakeside Road and a great room, which is actually a Living Room towards the Lake then there’s a deck. So, it’s a total of approximately about 1700 sq ft plus or minus.

Mr. Hughes: What’s your septic system consist of there and what does the neighbor have for septic?

Mr. Maroney: I am pretty sure everyone is hooked up to sewer.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Maroney: They’re both here.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. It didn’t indicate that there and it also had a note on the plan about Lot 1 being able to draw water from Lot 2 but it didn’t say which Lot was # 2. Is that yours Lot # 2?

Mr. Maroney: No, what Lot am I? (to Mr. Klein)

Mr. Klein: I have the original site plan here; it was an approved subdivision plot.

Mr. Hughes: Is this Lot 2?

Mr. Klein: That would be, that’s Lot 1 is Lakeside Road and this would be Lot 2. (inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Here’s what threw me off, it said here that Lot #1 has the right to pull from the well on Lot #2 and also to maintain so that both of them can draw water from there. So, now you’re saying both of these houses are on Municipal water?

Mr. Klein: Actually, as far as the, there’s an existing septic and right, there’s a septic there for that lot, there is a well. So, whether it’s Municipal water or a well, whatever is existing I am not really sure.

Mr. Hughes: Do any of the homeowners know what’s going on with that? Because you only got a 50 ft wide lot here and if you’re servicing off that well, your septics are only like 30 feet from that well no matter where they are.

Mr. Maroney: I know I am hooked up with the sewer and the Town water. I was there when they did it and watched happen.

Mr. Hughes: And, the neighbor as well? 

Mr. Maroney: Yes, the neighbors are right here Neighbor #2 and Neighbor #3.

Mr. Hughes: Are there other people besides these two lots that have access to this easement that runs right next to the house?

Mr. Maroney: I am not sure.

Mr. Hughes: There is a 20 ft wide roadway here that’s listed on this.

Mr. Maroney: I don’t think so. Could you answer that, Neighbor #2? 

Neighbor #2: On the south side or the north side of your property?

Mr. Hughes: On the north side of your property?

Ms. Gennarelli: I am sorry, could you use the microphone? It’s going into the record, you could take it off from there.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe you could take a look at this here?

Mr. Maroney: I think it’s the south side, Ron.

Mr. Klein: That is actually the south side.

Mr. Hughes: Here’s where the 10 ft wide roadway shows.

Mr. Klein: Your specs on a driveway, it’s more on the south side.

Mr. Hughes: Is there anyone else that has access or rights to use that?

Mr. Klein: No, just these two.

Mr. Hughes: Just these two properties?

Mr. Klein: Just the two properties, that easement is for the (inaudible)

Mr. McKelvey: I think the simplest thing would be to know if he is on Town water and sewer.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Kunkel: He is.

Mr. McKelvey: He thinks he is.

Mr. Hughes: I didn’t see the pump station or anything and it’s all down hill there, that’s why I was asking.

Ms. Eaton: Is the lot coverage going to be 17.4% or 16.7%?

Mr. Klein: 16.7%. 

Ms. Eaton: Because there’s a conflict on here, there’s two different …

Mr. Klein: The revised drawings that we’re sending, that’s (inaudible) 

Ms. Eaton:  16.7%

Mr. Klein: that’s the latest the filed site plan.

Mr. Hughes: So, you have 8000 ft in a 40,000 zone and you’re covering 16%? Is that right?

Mr. Maroney: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address.

Neighbor #3: Neighbor #3, _______ Road, I am the direct neighbor. I didn’t have a chance to discuss this with Mr. Maroney earlier but my only concern is that any improvements are property drained because the homes are quite close together and currently a lot of gutter drainage goes into the alley between the homes. I just ask that that be a consideration with new plans that it’s drained away from both the properties properly.

Chairperson Cardone: And you live right next door?

Neighbor #3: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have Town sewer?

Neighbor #3: Yes, maam.

Chairperson Cardone: And Town water?

Neighbor #3: Yes. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you please address that concern?

Mr. Maroney: Yes, I can make sure that happens. I could put it in writing or whatever she would like. 

Mr. McKelvey: The thing is if you sewer, it would have to be pumped up to Lakeside Road.

Mr. Maroney: Yeah, there is a pump. I am already on that sewer.

Mr. McKelvey: I just wanted to clarify that, that’s all.

Mr. Maroney: Oh yeah, we all have pumps.

Mr. Manley: Pumps for sewer, but not for rainwater, right?

Mr. McKelvey: No, I am talking about sewage here.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: That could go down to the Lake.

Mr. McKelvey: Drainage is all downhill there.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the public?

Neighbor #2: My name is Neighbor #2 and I’m directly next door to Mr. Maroney on the north side. As I’ve seen the plans that he’s presented, I just wanted to say that I have no problem with the addition as it’s planned out right now as long as he wasn’t going out to the sides, off to the side of expanding out, it looks perfectly fine to me.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Maroney: Thank you, Neighbor #2.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Maroney: Thank you for your time.

(Time Noted – 7:38 PM)

ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:38 PM)

PAT MARONEY 


391 LAKESIDE ROAD, NBGH  







(33-1-10.2) R-1 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Pat Maroney at 391 Lakeside Road for area variances for side yards setbacks and increasing the degree of non-conformity and maximum building lot coverage. That is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: I’d like to say that the applicant has put forth a very nice plan. I feel it may be a little too large for the property, that perhaps there may be a reconfigure this a little bit, by maybe going up a little higher and not going out so much out the back or out the front. And, you could possibly achieve the same thing with out broadening, going out further. The concern that one of the residents had with the water, with the runoff, I think that that could be easily addressed. But, I do have one concern with the size of it. It’s close to 1800 sq ft and increasing the size, the coverage on the lot.

Mr. Hughes: This came up in discussion before, would the applicant consider reconfiguration by reducing?

Mr. Maroney: Well, I can’t go up higher, the house is so small.

Mr. Hughes: We’ve all been out to the site, Pat.

Mr. Maroney: That’s the smallest … 

Mr. Hughes: We were there.

Mr. Maroney: … the smallest you could possibly come up with and it’s smaller (inaudible) and my neighbors love the idea.

Mr. Hughes: Well, that’s understandable, but we have to go by State Law, we don’t go by what the neighbors go by. Can you reduce the size of your garage?

Mr. Maroney: It’s a one-car garage.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I, we know all the facts and figures about, we’re looking for some concessions from you to get your variance granted.

Mr. Maroney: I took the roof off of the porch.

Mr. Hughes: But, that doesn’t take anything off the coverage of the property.

Ms. Gennarelli: Can we use mic, please? Can we use the microphone if we talk, please? It’s going into the record. Sorry.

Mr. Coppola: I don’t know if I can.

Chairperson Cardone: The public hearing has actually been closed on this unless you wanted to reopen it.

Mr. Hughes: If you think you can have something positive to contribute and it’s up to the Board, we’d have to reopen it. Unanimously, I believe.

Chairperson Cardone: It would be up to the Board to reopen. Do I have a motion to that effect? 

Mr. Hughes: I’ll move and look for a second for the discussion.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call to reopen.

Ms. Gennarelli: To reopen.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 9:40 PM)

Mr. Coppola: My name is Jay Coppola, 30 Tenbrouck Lane, Orange Lake. I represent Orange Lake Civic Association. I am the Vice President of it and Chairman of Land and Zoning. I had been asked to review this. I thought the presentation was excellent and included everything. Some of my findings were that the 17.4% that, I believe, your Building Department came up with as a percentage that exceeded the 10% that is now in the new Zoning were not a hardship of Mr. Maroney, as I looked at it. The architect has said that that percentage is now 16.7% in approximate numbers. I personally, with the help of Mr. Manley and the Board, were responsible for the re-zoning in that general area. We were previously R-3. That R-3 had a 15% building to lot coverage. So, in fact, if you were to look at the percentage of overage based on the way Mr. Maroney bought the property, you would be at 1%, 1.7% according the architect Mr. Klein. 

Chairperson Cardone: Could I …

Mr. Coppola: Bup, up, excuse me.

Chairperson Cardone: Could I just interrupt you, you said at the time that he bought it?

What year did you buy the property?

Mr. Maroney: 1995.

Mr. Coppola: 1995, he bought the property. The Zoning was just changed this previous … this year.

Mr. McKelvey: This year.

Mr. Coppola: And, it was done in a short period of time. It really wasn’t anticipated when the Master Plan was put into effect. I’ve been present at a lot of the meetings and it was a good afterthought. Based on that, your criteria’s are hardships and what it does to the surrounding, character of the surrounding neighborhood. Number 1, a 1%, 1.7% is not unjust for a Board to consider. Yes, the Zoning has been changed and what you’re looking at now is a 6.7% increase through no fault of Mr. Maroney’s. We at Orange Lake want to see what he’s doing. Taking cottages, improving the property, improving our values. I again, with the help of Manley and the Board were instrumental in the view-sheds. What we did is, and it’s in the Zoning, created an avenue for neighbors come in front of your Board if a view was being disturbed. His original drawing showed a roof on the porch. He eliminated that, to try and address this. If you look close at the drawing he is not, even with the extension of that porch, impeding the views. You’ve heard the two young ladies that were here, that are neighbors on either side, with no objections. So, I’d like the Board to take another considerate look at this application. Because I think some of the things that you rightfully are looking at Mr. Manley are not the applicants fault at all, although I do understand Zoning today and what you have to address in your numbers. Thank you for listening. 

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any other questions or comments? If not, I …

All right. Go ahead.

Mr. Maroney: I would just like to say I started these plan like two years ago, when the R-3 Zoning was in effect and I just had to save up some money. And, got the money together and went forward here a couple of months ago, after the Zoning was changed.

So, I just appreciate your consideration on this for me. Thanks.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any other questions or comments? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. 

(Time Noted – 9:44 PM)
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391 LAKESIDE ROAD, NBGH  







(33-1-10.2) R-1 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: Now we’ll get on to the decision, back to the decision. As I stated, this is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Kunkel: I happen to believe it will be a significant improvement in the appearance of the neighborhood. Improving property values on both sides and in the neighborhood in general and I see no reason why we shouldn’t approve this.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I agree with you.

Mr. McKelvey: And, with the neighbors agreeing on each side.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. Kunkel: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll Call. 

Ms. Gennarelli: 


John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 9:47 PM)
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(14-1-14) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for rear yard, side yard increasing the degree of non-conformity and height to demolish and build a new 1-Family home.                                                        

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is the Estate of Parant, 43 Mountain View Avenue.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Spiegel: Hello, my names is Dan Spiegel, this is my partner Joe Locascio. We are interested in purchasing the property on 43 Mountain View Avenue and currently, if you have been to the house, you can see it’s uninhabitable. It’s basically a knockdown house but it doesn’t conform to today’s codes, so what we’d like to do is be able to take the house down. And the back right-hand corner of the house, there’s a jut there, it’s approximately 13 ft x 12 ½ ft, we want to basically make it a square and then build a single family home on that.

Chairperson Cardone: You are talking about a 2-story?

Mr. Spiegel: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, what would be the square footage of the completed house?

Mr. Spiegel: The completed square footage would be approximately 2000 sq ft. 

Mr. Hughes: Is there water and sewer on this lot?

Mr. Spiegel: There is Town water and septic there.

Mr. Hughes: But, you only have not even a third of an acre there. Where are you going to put the septic?

Mr. Spiegel: Well, what we’re going to do is, once we get into the house, we haven’t seen what the septic is. I am assuming it’s a whatever is in the ground, we would update to whatever we would have to do. And I thought it was a half acre that it was one?

Mr. Hughes: You’ve got 126 x 86 on one side and 131 on the other, 125 x 100.33. 

Mr. Spiegel: According to our survey, it says .49 acres. That’s what we have. Basically we knew that whatever they have in the ground right now I am sure isn’t to today’s code. We were going to update that to meet today’s codes.

Mr. Hughes: I think that I would like a little bit more information about the neighboring properties. We have a map here from the Assessor’s Office, which shows the adjacent properties, and I’m concerned about the well offsets or setback, if you will, from where you may intend to put field. I don’t know that you’re going to have enough room to put a field and a new tank and not encroach upon a neighbor’s well. So, I think I’d like a little more information about where those well locations are and that’s these properties here.

Mr. Spiegel: Well, when you face the house, there is a house to the left of it and there is a trailer to the left of that. On the right-hand side of this property there’s nothing there.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Spiegel: So, I would assume right now that the septic is located there.

Mr. Hughes: Are you referring to these two small lots to the left?

Mr. Spiegel: Can I come … ?

Mr. Hughes: Sure, come right up.

(Discussion with the Board)

Mr. Spiegel: From here to the right hand side there’s nothing.

Mr. Hughes: All right, but now to the left, if this neighbors well is on this edge and you’re trying put a septic here?

Mr. Spiegel: (inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Do you have locations for these?

Mr. Spiegel: You have it right here, where knocked on the door over there, I don’t know where their septic is, cause the people that moved in there just moved in.

Mr. Hughes: Well, their septic may impede yours, unless you’re going to hook into the Town water.

Mr. Spiegel: Town water. That’s the first thing I thought of, if we didn’t have Town water it would be too close. I am assuming, right now, that the septic is definitely going on the right hand side because there is nothing here (inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: We are familiar. We went out there.

Mr. Spiegel: All right. So, it’s got to be on the right hand side, it has to be.

Ms. Eaton: Is that pool that’s there on your property?

Mr. Spiegel: I am sorry. Yes, there is a pool on the property on the left hand side.

Ms. Eaton: It’s not yours?

Mr. Spiegel: That is part of this estate, yes. That’s on this property.

Ms. Eaton: What about that shed?

Mr. Spiegel: The shed to the right is on the property.

Ms. Eaton: And, are you going to remove both of them?

Mr. Spiegel: Yes.

Ms. Drake: Have you done soils tests out there to even see if the septic could fit on the property, before you purchase it?

Mr. Spiegel: No, we haven’t done that yet. 

Ms. Drake: That may be something you want to look into, is doing the soils test. To know  what septic system …

Mr. Spiegel: Well, I am the builder in the area and I would assume it’s going to be a small house what we are going to be building, so, I figure right now if was a two bedroom house before, I would guess it’s a 550 gallon tank in there. Today, I would have to put in a 1200 gallon, I am sure of that and we’d have to add. We were going to do that anyway. I am sure whatever is in the ground is not, not functioning.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Spiegel: With the condition of the house right now, I don’t know when the last person lived in there, how long ago it was, it’s been a while.

Ms. Eaton: You’re buying this house for speculation, this property for speculation and you’re not going to live there?

Mr. Spiegel: That’s correct.

Mr. Manley: Could you just share with me the approximate current square feet of the home and you’re saying you pretty much want to double that, correct?

Mr. Spiegel: The home right now is approximately 800 square feet and we were basically, the footprint right now in the back we are going to add a 12’ x 13’ section in the back to square it off, there is a jut too it and then just build a basically 2-story. So, maybe 800 on the downstairs and it would probably end up being closer to 900 downstairs and upstairs another 900. So, 2000 or under.

Mr. McKelvey: You’re just taking that corner and squaring it off?

Mr. Spiegel: Exactly. For some reason and how they built it, if it was squared off we wouldn’t have to do that, but it’s not functional right now. The way it’s squared off, it’s, we really couldn’t get into the house because it’s in such bad shape. And, if it would help as far as, in back I know there is a rear setback. Because we can’t salvage anything there, we would actually move the house up closer to the road if it would help. Because I think we have, right now, almost 78 ft from the road to the front of the house.

Chairperson Cardone: Then, there is a possibility of moving it? I was going to ask you that.

Mr. Spiegel: Yes. Because we know that on the right on side setback if we add that section we are going to be even closer to the side setback. We can move the house up. 

From the left side we have 39 ft.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Spiegel: From the stakes, 39 ft to where the house is now.

Chairperson Cardone:  I would suggest doing that.

Mr. Spiegel: That’s what we figured we’d do.

Mr. Hughes: And, I concur with my colleague about the soils testing there. I know they’ve had problems there with drainage and other things along that stretch through there on Mountain Avenue. I would look into that and the house movement simultaneously so that if you have to go to one corner of that lot or whatever. I would really like some more information on this thing about those wells and their real location on that well, not just saying that it’s in the middle of the guys yard. Something off the road with a dimension, something off the property line with a dimension.

Mr. Spiegel: Well, yeah, just tape it, cause it’s right in front of his house.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, but I think I would like to see what you could really do there as far as perc goes as well. This is a spec house. There’s no issue where somebody’s forced to stay there, that you’re trying to accommodate a family’s need or anything like that. There’s just to many questions here about the perc-ability of that property. I’d really take a good look at that. They’ve had problems along that strip in the past about water and drainage and septic. I have nothing else.

Mr. Manley: The only thing I’ll just add is it is close to the Reservoir Residential, the RR 2 Zone, it’s within 500 ft of the RR 2 which requires 2-acre zoning. So, it’s fairly close. And, now that would require instead of a half an acre, you’d have to have a full acre under the AR zone. But, it is pre-existing. 

Mr. Spiegel: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: That would be the thing, move it forward.

Mr. Spiegel: That’s what we figured we’d do.

Mr. Locascio: A comment on the perc tests, do you need some perc tests in order to make a decision or … ?

Mr. Hughes: I’m not really sure about that; I would refer you to our Counsel or our Chairperson.

Ms. Martini: He wants to make it a condition?

Mr. Hughes: We could make it a condition, maybe?

Mr. Spiegel: We talked to Taconic and that was one of the things, they basically said, take it step by step. But, that’s what we were told.

Mr. Hughes: If you could get us some information on the next door neighbors well location and a perc test, in a short period of time, and get that back to us maybe we can hold up.

Chairperson Cardone: Are you suggesting holding this open until the next meeting?

Mr. Hughes: I think that would be for the benefit and the safety of that RR zone that Mr. Manley referred to and everything else. 

Ms. Drake: I would concur and he could be purchasing a lot and building a house and not be able to put a septic system in it.

Mr. Spiegel: The only thing on our end is that, where we’re at is; this is an estate sale so we are getting pushed. Is there anyway to make it a condition if we can do it, let’s say if you would approve it but we can’t meet it, then we’re out anyway. But, right now it’s just a matter of I don’t know how long this will take and … 

Mr. Hughes: Do your homework quickly. We can keep the hearing open. We can make a decision at anytime if you return that information back to us.

Mr. Spiegel: Is that something that as soon as I can get a hold of them, they can come out there, I present you with the information, then, is that how it would work then?

Mr. Hughes: I believe you can do the perc test yourself as long as someone witnesses it from the Building Department.

Mr. McKelvey: We wouldn’t be able to vote on it until next month.

Mr. Hughes: Next month, 30 days.

Mr. McKelvey: 30 days.

Mr. Spiegel: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Well, it might not even be that because they changed the meeting. It was a holiday. 

Mr. McKelvey: It’ll be a little longer.

Mr. Hughes: It’ll be a little longer than 30 days. Cause we moved this one up from the next Thursday.

Ms. Eaton: Wouldn’t you need a professional engineer …

Chairperson Cardone: December 28th is our next meeting.

Ms. Eaton:  to verify the perc test?

Mr. Hughes: You either need an engineer or somebody to witness it, the way I understand it.

Mr. Spiegel: If we were to hire somebody to do that though, is there anyway to get that information cause we’re …

Mr. Hughes: I think I’d be moving quickly if I were you. You want to get this thing through, right.

Mr. Spiegel: Right, but you’re saying either way, it’s not going to be, we can’t even get back to you until the 28th of December.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s when our next meeting is.

Chairperson Cardone: We don’t meet until the 28th and we do have up to 62 days to make a decision. 

Mr. Spiegel: Right, I understand.

Chairperson Cardone: But, we try to make a decision this evening, but we don’t always make the decision.

Mr. Spiegel: I understand.

Mr. McKelvey: I think, it’s just for the safety of everything around there …

Mr. Hughes: There’s a lot of problems there with wells and septics and drainage and we don’t want to contaminate any of the neighborhood or any of the water stuff that runs up and down there.

Mr. Spiegel: No.

Mr. Manley: The only other issue that I can see that and I’m not sure that this would have required it. 43 Mountain View is probably within 500 feet maybe of State Route 300, was it within the 500?

Mr. Hughes: I don’t think so. I think that’s further down. But good point.

Mr. Manley: It seemed …

Mr. Hughes: It might be closer to the Thruway than to 300, isn’t it?

Mr. Manley: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: It’s closer to the Thruway than it is to 300.

Ms. Gennarelli: It was sent to Orange County.

Mr. Manley: It went to Orange County?

Ms. Gennarelli: It went to Orange County Department of Planning.

Ms. Eaton: We haven’t heard back from them?

Ms. Gennarelli: But, we haven’t heard back from them.

Mr. McKelvey: No response from the County? It was sent to the County.

Chairperson Cardone: Was there a response from the County?

Ms. Gennarelli: No. Not yet.

Chairperson Cardone: What we have to do, I would suggest keeping it open anyway, because we haven’t received a response from the County.

Mr. Spiegel: And this is in regards to …?  

Mr. Hughes: The County’s response to us from our request, if they have anything further to comment on, we usually get a sheet back from them.

Mr. Manley: When a property is in an Agricultural Zone, an AR Zone which this property is or if it’s within 500 ft of a State or County Roadway, we’re required, the Town is required to notify the County Department of Planning and they have to provide comments to the Zoning Board.

Mr. Hughes: Or, if it’s close to another Municipality. In other words, if the end of your street is the next Town, then they’ve got to notify the next Municipality as well for their comments to that.

Mr. McKelvey: I would think the Thruway would be the closest.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, but I don’t think they have a concern cause there’s other properties contiguous to both the Thruway and this property. I have nothing else. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions, comments from the public? Do I have a motion to hold this hearing open?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye all.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: This is held open until December the 28th our next meeting.

Mr. McKelvey: In the meantime, maybe you can get that information for us.

Mr. Spiegel: I will. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:54 PM)
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(109-1-15) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variance for rear yard setback to build a rear sunroom.                                                        

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Elijah Beamon, 31 Rockwood Drive.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Klein: Hi, my name is Howard Klein with Vinyl Tech and we’re working with Mr. Beamon proposing a 12 x 11 sunroom on the rear of his residence which would require instead of 40 ft, we would be 38 ft so, asking for a 2 ft variance basically. I don’t know, did you, you’ve gotten the pictures then and seen the rear pictures of the home? If you need something larger, I have larger pictures.

Chairperson Cardone: We have them.

Mr. Klein: O.K. And, our sunroom would be constructed on a foundation, there insulated panels and insulated roof and of course, we try to utilize as much glass as possible into our rooms.

Ms. Eaton: Do you have a picture of the sunroom?

Mr. Klein: No, I am sorry, Maam. I don’t have any with us, but …

Mr. Hughes: You don’t have any factory specs or cuts on that sunroom.

Mr. Klein: I have the floor layouts and the plans from Temo.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a spec of materials or anything? Is it all aluminum or …?

Mr. Klein: They’re aluminum baked panels and with foam insulated basically interior panel, inside the panel is a foam insulation with aluminum baked enamel panels and then the windows are insulated glass.

Ms. Eaton: Is this a three-season room?

Mr. Klein: Yes, it’s a three-season sunroom.

Mr. Hughes: No heat or plumbing in there?

Mr. Klein: No, Sir.

Mr. Hughes: Electric?

Mr. Klein: There’s electric panels if the homeowner wanted to run electric panels or electric to it. They could run electric, at a later time, in the base. And, then there’s certain panels in the walls you could put it, an electrical outlet.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public? Anything else from the Board? 

Mr. Beamon: I’d like to say good evening, my name is Elijah Beamon. I live at 31 Rockwood Drive. It’s nice to see my previous Principal, Mrs. Cardone. I’ve been living at Rockwood Drive for 20 years now. We moved there in 1987 and we’re one of the first homes in that area. Actually I went in and cut down trees and we picked a home design from magazines and decided on that particular design. Three years ago, we had texture 111, it us Cedar siding and three years ago we had vinyl siding put on. The main reason why was a lot of woodpeckers were in the area and tapping on the Cedar siding. So, we don’t have that problem now. And we have, it’s three bedrooms, the bedrooms are upstairs, it’s a small kitchen and by putting this sunroom off the kitchen, we have a door that leads right from the kitchen. So, you can go right from the rear of the kitchen right into where the sunroom is proposed. So, it will be used like a family room and it’s close access to the kitchen, all the drinks and things can be passed, there’s a window there right over the sink, can be passed and brought into the proposed sunroom. And, it will provide our family, my wife and I, our children are grown, so, it’s just my wife and I now and we’ll just use it for a TV room and a family room. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Beamon: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Beamon: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:58 PM)
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Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Elijah Beamon, at 31 Rockwood Drive, seeking an area variance for rear yard setback to build a sunroom. That is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do I have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: He is only asking for 2 feet.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Eaton: There weren’t any neighbors here disputing that. I think that this house has a good appearance as it is, it will only improve it.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll Call. 

Ms. Gennarelli: 


John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 9:49 PM)
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(64-2-10.12) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation of the ordinance – Schedule 7, Row A and a variance of maximum allowable storage of four vehicles to build a 28’ x 18.5’ storage building with garage door.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Gary Gaydos, 116 Old South Plank Road. 

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order. 

Mr. Coppola: Hello, I am Jay Coppola, by proxy representing Mr. Gaydos, I live at 30 Tenbrouck Lane, Town of Newburgh, Orange Lake. I placed pictures here; you already have these pictures. I just blew them up for a reason. We submitted an application to the Building Department for a Building Permit to build on the exact footprint of an existing shed. That shed is 28’x18’6”. I have a letter in the file by Mr. Klein, the Architect for the shed, verifying the dimension as 28x18’6. The reconstruction storage shed is the same size on the existing footprint. His new blueprint reflects that same dimension. Explaining this, because we are a little confused, quite frankly, at the disapproval. The disapproval, if you’ll allow me to read it to you. Which by the way, Ms. Gennarelli got to us the same day as the approval (misspoke meant the ‘disapproval’) that was quite nice. Thank you Betty. States, Schedule 7 - Row A allows storage of 4 vehicles, has a 4 car garage already this structure replaces an existing structure but garage door is added. These pictures show the, and you have these pictures in a smaller scale, these pictures show the shed that we’re talking about. The 28 ft wall presently is all doors. The entire 28 feet can be opened up into doors. And, if you look close in there, you’re seeing mowers, golf cart, looks like a leaf cart in there, maintenance items. It is in fact a shed. The shed is 38 years old. It is in dire need of repair or replacement. In designing a shed the same size and placing one door instead of 28 foot of doors is not increasing a non-conformity. The fact that he elects to call it a garage is subject for discussion from what it has been used for and the intended use. It is going on the exact same location, so again, we are totally confused why we’re in front of you. We don’t know why at all.

Chairperson Cardone: What is the intended use? 

Mr. Coppola: Just to continue its use as a shed. This equipment will be put back in the new structure. Gary lives on a very, in my opinion, a very pretty location.

Chairperson Cardone: It is.

Mr. Coppola: He has a stream going through it. He does have a garage that he maintains everything inside the garage. He is expert at what he does - with cars. He has a large grass area that goes to the road that is called Shady Lane. We have gotten a curb cut into Shady Lane, for no specific reason. Shady Lane is a big; on the Shady Lane side it’s a large grass area. Mr. Gaydos maintains that grass area so the kids in Shady Lane have a place to play off the street. So, I had asked him if he would move the shed over there to make it more convenient for everybody and he explained what he does there and I couldn’t debate it with him at all. So, here we are in front of the Board not knowing why we’re here. We have a gentleman that wants to knock down a 38 year old shed and improve it on the same footprint, same location, wants to improve his property. I don’t understand why the Town would prevent somebody from maintaining his property correctly. Thank you for listening. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I actually have one. Being a new Member, I didn’t get a chance to get out to the site, so it’s this framed shed here and towards the back, well before the grass area? It’s this shed here? And this is his garage?

Mr. Coppola: Let me open this for you, Ms Drake. (inaudible) garage. 

Ms. Drake: So, there is no way to drive cars through the garage to park any cars back here? So, there is actually no way to get the vehicles, road worthy vehicles, cars into this?

Mr. Coppola: To answer you specifically, yes you could.

Ms. Drake: Oh. So, there is a back door on the shed? 

Mr. Coppola: Is there a back door on the shed? No. There is no door on the shed. 

Ms. Drake:  On the garage? No?

Mr. Coppola: But to answer your question, yes.

Ms. Drake: Oh.

Chairperson Cardone: I believe that, correct me if I am wrong, wasn’t that part of the proposal last time?

Mr. Coppola: The proposal …

Chairperson Cardone: This proposal is different from the last proposal in what way?

Mr. Coppola: This proposal, let me get to the microphone. This proposal has no comparison to the last one.

Chairperson Cardone: I just wanted to get that for the record.

Mr. Coppola: The last proposal was for a much larger building.

Chairperson Cardone: Correct.

Mr. Coppola: It actually, Gary came to me too late. He came to me after he asked to submit the first time. I am a dear friend of Gary’s and we’ve done business over the years. He’s President of the Iron Workers Union and we’ve done business. I checked, I have all the calculations here of his last submittal. I did all the calculations that you do. You did the right thing in rejecting it. It should have never been brought in front of you. And, when he came to me I told him that. He did want more space, because if you look in those pictures, he needs more space. I told him you’re not going to get it, because, right then and there he exceeded Zoning in that area. So, it took me quite a while but I convinced him, the only way you can do anything is to rebuild what you got, exactly what you have. So, that’s why we’re so shocked that this was disapproved by the Building Department.

Mr. Manley: Jay, can I ask a question? 

Mr. Coppola: Sure.

Mr. Manley: And, maybe if you can just take a look at this you can help me? Oh, you have color.

Mr. Coppola: I colored it.

Mr. Manley: That’s even better. This is the shed in question?

Mr. Coppola: That is the existing.

Mr. Manley: Correct. How many doors, for the record, does it have currently on it now?

Mr. Coppola:  28 foot of doors.

Mr. Manley: But, if you were to slide them or however you look at it are there three stalls?

Mr. Coppola: Yes, actually you could get four. As I say, we put one door where there were possibility of four. See these slide, this one opens, these slide back and forth. So, I took a picture of the middle open and the end open.

Mr. Manley: So, basically this would be, see this here, that’s one stall.

Mr. Coppola: Hm, hmm, it’s a big stall, but it’s one.

Mr. Manley: And this?

Mr. Coppola: Is two. 

Mr. Manley: Is two.

Mr. Coppola: And, that’s three.

Mr. Manley: And that would be three.

Mr. Coppola: Now the drawing is reducing that to one. So, I say we’re reducing …

Mr. Manley: So, when you tear down the old and build the new …?

Mr. Coppola: This will be that same wall.

Mr. Manley: O.K. This here wasn’t in our packet here.

Mr. Coppola: Oh, we didn’t give the print, excuse me, I should have explained this.

Mr. Manley: So, now this is what, when you look at it, this is what it will look like?

Mr. Coppola: I’m sorry; I thought you had that in your packet. 

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Chairperson Cardone: This garage right here, this one has how many doors?

Mr. Coppola: The garage by the street, how many doors street side? 

Mr. Gaydos: One.

Mr. Coppola: One garage door?

Mr. McKelvey: One double. It’s a double garage door, right?

Mr. Gaydos: It’s an 18 x 8.

Mr. Coppola: 18 high?

Mr. Hughes: 18 wide.

Mr. Coppola: It’s a double door right, right John.

Mr. McKelvey: It’s a double door.

Mr. Coppola: And, no door in the back? No door in the back?

Mr. McKelvey: It’s one door but it’s ...

Mr. Coppola: Is there any door in the rear of it?

Mr. Gaydos: Yes, there is.

Mr. Coppola: Is it an overhead door?

Mr. Gaydos: Yes.

Mr. Coppola: O.K. 

Mr. Manley: So, if you open up both you can drive straight through

Mr. Coppola: Yes, that’s why I answered Ms. Drake like that.

Mr. Manley: So, if you’re granted this variance you would have a total of three doors?

Mr. Coppola: Mr. Manley, I don’t thing we need a variance. We are here for an interpretation. I am reducing the possibility of, as the Building Code Enforcement Officer said, was additional garages. We are not making an additional garage. This is a shed; it’s to remain a shed. We had a gambrel roof design here we changed that. And, again, if you look at the pictures, I don’t think Mr. Gaydos could have done anything more. The drawing that they have there shows a single slope roof. We had a gambrel design roof previously. Gambrel gives up more height and it’s a Dutch design roof. We replicated what is there with a single slope roof. This design shows exactly what’s there. We couldn’t have attempted to do any more in replication.

Ms. Eaton: What’s the height of the building?

Mr. Coppola: 15 foot. We are under your minimum, at your minimum. Maximum, excuse me.

Mr. McKelvey: The door on the back of this garage is the same size as the one on the front?

Mr. Gaydos: No sir. It’s 7 ft by 8 x 7.

Chairperson Cardone:  (inaudible) garage? Correct? And, you’re saying that with the doors that you have it’s essentially a 3-car garage? 

Mr. Gaydos: My existing garage?

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Gaydos: My existing garage, I have 3 cars in there and a small work area.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Gaydos: Work bench and that type of stuff.

Mr. McKelvey: We’re considering the doors. 

Mr. Coppola: Well …

Mr. McKelvey: You’re allowed 4 doors.

Mr. Coppola: You’re allowed 4 garages.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah.

Mr. Coppola: He has 3-car garage and if they insist on calling this a garage, it’s one door.

Chairperson Cardone: But if it has one door, it’s then a total of four?

Mr. Coppola: Four.

Mr. McKelvey: And, that’s what’s allowed.

Chairperson Cardone: One is three and the other one is one, going by the doors.

Mr. Coppola: We’re aware of where you’re going with that and that’s why we designed it like this, anticipating these issues.

Mr. Hughes: If I may, I think one of the things that makes a point of confusion here between the Building Department’s Inspector and his opinion and view of what you have there. You’re only allowed to have 1000 sq ft of a building on a property of that size to begin with, so he’s taking that into consideration and adding your garage and the shed together. Then, there is another issue that goes on top of it. If you have a building and it’s the size of this room and you can park 6 cars in here and you only have one 1-car garage door on it, he still considers that a 4-car garage. So, it’s not even apples and oranges here, we have grapes and watermelons. So, I agree with you partially that he might not even have to be have been here if it was presented in a different fashion. But, again, the Building Department’s Inspector is saying that you’ve got over 1000 sq ft of storage on your property and you shouldn’t have.

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t think so.

Mr. Coppola: Just a minute. 

Chairperson Cardone: That’s not why they are here.

Mr. Coppola: Just a minute. Mr. Hughes is absolutely correct in what he is saying. But, Mr. Hughes you’re wrong because it exists. We are not adding another 1000 feet.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Coppola: Or, we are not adding square footage to go over that. 

Mr. Hughes: Right, it’s pre-existing.

Mr. Coppola: It exists. We are reducing the non-conformity by eliminating doors.

Mr. Manley: So, what you are saying right now is that you currently have three stalls?

Mr. Coppola: Correct.

Mr. Manley: Which could be three doors?

Mr. Coppola: Correct.

Mr. Manley: And, you add the one door on the back, gives you four plus the two in the front gives you five?

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Mr. Coppola: No, there’s one in the front, it’s wider.

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Mr. Coppola: You’re going with doors and I think you’re reg’s talk of garages? And, garage space?

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Coppola: O.K. The existing garage is 3-cars.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Coppola: This one could have been construed, now, in the opinion of your Building Department as an additional 3-garages.

Mr. Manley: For a total of six? Yes?

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Mr. Manley: So, what you are saying you are going from 6 to 4?

Mr. Coppola: Correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K. That’s all I needed to understand.

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, I am confused at what they did and I’m making you confused, I think.

Mr. Manley: You’re trying, but …

Mr. Coppola: You’ve seen me before and you can handle, you handle yourself well.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board? 

Mr. McKelvey: The only thing I can see that they’re considering that that building is a garage is you’re putting an overhead door and, I mean, I am trying to look at their point and …

Mr. Coppola: I’m not as generous John.

Mr. McKelvey: No, but I am saying but that’s what I think they are looking at.

Mr. Hughes: Replace that door with another slider or are you going to put an overhead?

Mr. Coppola: We are trying to bring it up to today’s standards with an overhead.

Right now, that’s what he’s got, the old barn sliders. Thank you, thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. 

(Time Noted – 8:17 PM) 
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(64-2-10.12) B ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Gary Gaydos at 116 Old South Plank Road, Newburgh is seeking an interpretation of the Ordinance Schedule 7 – Row A of maximum allowable storage of four vehicles. Do I have discussion on this interpretation? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think we have to reserve any decision on this until we hear from the County or can we do the interpretation?

Chairperson Cardone: We can do the interpretation.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: On the variance, we would have to reserve decision pending report from the Orange County Department of Planning. 

Mr. Hughes: The request to County has been sent and they haven’t sent it back yet?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s correct. 

Mr. Hughes: Could we possibly move it with a condition? On a favorable report from them … ?

Chairperson Cardone: Well, first we need to address the interpretation.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, Hmm. But, even before it gets to that point, can we do that in a  parlay (inaudible) so in other words if the interpretation doesn’t go, then can we make it with an approval with a condition, depending on the County? In other words, I don’t want to shut the door on them if the interpretation …

Chairperson Cardone: We really should hold it, we have to be consistent, we’ve held any that we haven’t received the report from the County. We wait for that report.

Mr. McKelvey: We understand your …

Mr. Coppola: I have no idea what you are talking about.

Chairperson Cardone: Because the property is within 300 feet (s/b 500 ft) of a State or County Road, we send it to the Orange County Department of Planning and they send back a report with a recommendation. We did not get that recommendation on this particular application, so we have heard the applicant and all that I’m saying is that we wouldn’t make the decision this evening for a variance. But, we would make the decision at our next meeting, but we wouldn’t need anymore input. The only input that we need is the report from the County that enables us to make the decision.

Mr. Hughes: And, just so you know what we’re waiting for is because it’s within that distance of a Highway, the County will recommend to us if there’s any problems with that and I don’t see any foreseeable problems coming from that. It’s just a matter of process.

Mr. Coppola: I consider myself a quick study, you have totally, totally confused me. You have confused me why the County would influence a decision of this Zoning Board on a Zoning issue established by the Town. 

Mr. Hughes: It’s State Law.

Mr. Coppola: Pardon me?

Mr. Hughes: It’s State Law. We have to wait for the County’s recommendation. 

Mr. Coppola: And, the other thing I think that as a businessman confuses me, why don’t you have the report back? Was it sent out in time? 

Mr. Hughes: Probably.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, it was.

Ms. Martini: Yes, it was.

Mr. Coppola: You get these back formerly on time?

Chairperson Cardone: We got one back that we needed for this evening and there were three of them we did not get back. And we do, our Secretary does call them, asks them to please be timely with it but, they sometimes have a backlog.

Mr. Coppola: Then I have to request what Mr. Hughes had suggested that if the Board can find it, would they then at least give us an idea of the Board’s interpretation of this.

Mr. Hughes: We’ll do that next after the interpretation.

Mr. Coppola: Excuse me for jumping the gun.

Mr. Hughes: No, that’s quite all right, the process is confusing, believe me.

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: That’s it.

Mr. Coppola: I’ve read it, that’s why I’m confused.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like the discussion on the interpretation. Accessory use, private garage or carport for not more than 4 vehicles. How are we interpreting that? 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t always agree with the Building Department’s interpretation of what garage space is especially if it’s in more than one building. Sometimes it’s in the bottom of the house and there is a separate garage, sometimes there’s an attached garage, so in this site specific, I believe the interpretation would be correct if there was only the vehicles allowed in the main garage and storage in the back shed. And, even though the back shed is going to have a garage door on it, he’ll still only have 4 cars. 

Chairperson Cardone: I know in the past we have been very consistent about the garage doors, the issue of garage doors. According to what I heard tonight, there’s a double door and a single and another single and that makes four as far as I am concerned, which would be permissible.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, Hmm.

Mr. Manley: And, from what I can see and from the testimony of the applicant the other side is going to be used for storage of riding mower, golf cart, lawn equipment. The other thing that we had in a previous case where an individual had exceeded four doors, it was the suggestion of this Board that they make a smaller, if I remember, they took one of the doors out and they made a doorway instead of a garage door allowing us to go ahead and approve it. So, I think the past has been we’ve looked at the number of doors.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Kunkel: And, I think that’s been ridiculous. It’s the number of vehicles allowable, not the number of doors. We could have a building constructed with one door to house the 4 vehicles.

Mr. Hughes: That’s right.

Mr. Kunkel: Counting garage doors is ridiculous. It’s allowable storage for 4 vehicles, damn the door arrangements. That’s my opinion.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm.

Chairperson Cardone: I think that, no matter how we’re looking at this, if we are looking at it by the number of doors or if we are looking at it for the storage of vehicles it comes out with the same conclusion.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm. 

Chairperson Cardone: The storage shed is being used for storage and the garage is being used for the cars.

Ms. Eaton: Automobiles.

Mr. McKelvey: Cars.

Chairperson Cardone: So, the way that I look at it either if we are looking at what is housed there or are looking at the doors it still comes to 4 vehicles.

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll buy that on this one.

Mr. Hughes: Site specifically to this project I have to concur with Mr. Kunkel. We get these all the time and like he inferred previously, if you can put 6 cars in this room and you only had a 1-car garage door on there, it’s not a 1-car garage. And, this is what gets things messed up all the time. 

Chairperson Cardone: So, what I am asking then, from the Board, is that on this particular application is the Board of the opinion that this applicant does not need a variance?

Mr. Hughes: Not for the 4-car garages.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s what I’m ….

Mr. Manley: I would concur.

Chairperson Cardone: Now you’re saying not with 4-car garage, as if there’s some other variances? There is no other variance.

Mr. Hughes: There is no other interpretation asked for, but I want to be specific in our response. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Do I have a motion to that effect? 

Mr. Hughes: So approved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll Call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone:  So, our interpretation, so I can clarify this …

Mr. Coppola: Please.

Chairperson Cardone: Is that this application does not need a variance, because it meets the 4-car storage quota.

Mr. Coppola: So, if I can extend that interpretation, to myself, and Mr. Gaydos, the response from the State …

Mr. Manley: County.

Chairperson Cardone: County.

Mr. Coppola: County, coming back negative …

Chairperson Cardone: On a variance, it won’t really matter, because a variance isn’t needed.

Mr. Coppola: O.K.

Mr. Kunkel: We are not bound to follow the County’s recommendations, in any case, under the Law. 

Mr. Coppola: Now, I understand.

Mr. Kunkel: But, if we choose not to, it requires what, a super majority of the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm.

Mr. Kunkel: to overrule the County?

Ms. Martini: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Coppola: Let me ask you a simple question, are we approved or disapproved?

Mr. Hughes: Can you build? We didn’t get to that part yet.

Chairperson Cardone: The variance is no longer in question.

Mr. Coppola: O.K., so there was no reason to come here, we should be able to get a Building Permit?

Chairperson Cardone: Well there was a reason to come here for the interpretation.

Mr. McKelvey: For the interpretation.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, there was a reason to come here.

Mr. Hughes: And, your refurbishment isn’t going to exceed 15 feet.

Mr. Coppola: No, it’s on the drawing I think you have now.

Mr. Hughes: Then, there is no reason for you to come back here, unless you want to visit.

Mr. Coppola: Well, I happen to enjoy this.

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t know if the applicant does.

Mr. Coppola: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 10:00 PM)
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Applicant is seeking variances for front yards setbacks for existing non-conforming buildings for a three-lot subdivision and an interpretation of 185-19.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Michael O’Brien, 5266 Route 9W.

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Do we have anything from the County?

Ms. Gennarelli: No, not yet.

Mr. Brown: Charles Brown, Taconic Design, this is a result of a 3-Lot subdivision, a minor subdivision before the Planning Board right now of the Blue Moon parcel which is split zoned. The front part of it is B Zone and the rear is R-3. We’re pretty much cutting it along the zoning line creating 2 residential lots in the rear and the commercial lot in the front. As a result of this application we were referred here by the Planning Board for a front yard variance on the existing commercial building on Route 9W. On this one, I also asked for an interpretation because we’re not really affecting that building in any way, shape or form, so it’s pre-existing, non-conforming. I don’t know why we’d have to come here for a variance on that building.

Chairperson Cardone: That would be because you are sub-dividing.

Mr. Brown: Again, I don’t read it that way in the Codes, but that’s why I am here for an interpretation first and then if needed a variance. Again, because there is no proposed change to the building, there’ll be no impact on anything. This building existed before current zoning. It does meet the 40-yard (s/b foot), front yard setback typical for the B Zone. However, in the Zoning, along State Highways that gets pumped up to 60 ft, so we don’t meet the 60 ft. There is also the NY State DOT Highway taking that brought the property line where it currently is. Before that it was 60 ft, but the property line was essentially in the middle of the road. I think that’s it.

Chairperson Cardone:  Questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I think the reason that they sent you here for that because we cannot make a subdivision that leaves something that’s deficient in the setback. So, that’s the reason why. I don’t know if that falls …

Chairperson Cardone:  And, that’s according to the Code.

Mr. Hughes: And, that’s according to the Code. So, if that’s what you’re confused about as why you’re here, I’m sure that’s what it is. We can’t approve something and leave the residue that doesn’t conform.

Chairperson Cardone: 185-57F.

Mr. Brown: That’s in the Planning Board camp.

Mr. Hughes: It should show you that section on your rejection on why.

Mr. Brown: I’m sorry.

Mr. Hughes: It should tell you from the Building Department that Section from the Code and why was it was rejected.

Mr. Brown: Well, this wasn’t rejected. It was a referral from the Planning Board. There’s no Permit Application. There’s no proposed changes to the building. I was looking at Section 185 – 19 – C.

Chairperson Cardone: If you look at Section 185 – 57 – F, it says applications for site plan approval must comply in full with this Chapter.

Mr. Brown: And, again we’re not …

Chairperson Cardone: Any application requiring a variance must show such variance.

Mr. Brown: Again, this is not a site plan application, it’s a subdivision.

Chairperson Cardone: Well, that would follow the same regulations.

Mr. Brown: Not really, but again, O.K. if that’s your interpretation.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s mine. Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Concur.

Mr. Brown: O.K. So, we’re asking for a variance on the existing building.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I have. What’s the story with the Tree Service operating on the side road there on that same property? Do you have any application in for a Permit for that use?

Mr. O’Brien: Um, that’s been rented over the years for that type of business. And, no there is no application in. No ones requested us to put an application in either. Redrock used to rent that years ago and different people have been there and parked things and it’s been a continuous use. 

Chairperson Cardone:  And, Lots 2 and 3 would be for residential purposes.

Mr. Brown: There’s existing residences on those lots, yes.

Mr. Hughes: A 25 ft easement and utility reference there on that, next to the house around the corner, that’s separate from the drainage and the pipes that were put underground, where they are operating the wood service? Back further, there’s a 25 ft utility easement; do you know what I am referring to?

Mr. Brown: The proposed utility easement, proposed?

Mr. Hughes: Do you have your diagram there?

Mr. Brown: They were proposing a driveway and utility easement for one of the residences.

Ms. Gennarelli: Please take the microphone. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: And, do any other properties have access to that, besides your properties?

Mr. Brown: You’re talking about this, on Lot 2? That currently does not exist. That’s part of this proposed subdivision application to provide water service access to the rear residence and a common driveway. It can be used as a common driveway so that it actually cleans up the legal mechanisms for maintaining that common driveway.

Mr. Hughes: So, both of those properties will enjoy that 25 ft easement and it’ll be a driveway and utilities both?

Mr. Brown: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And, do you have a description of a narrative in, what do they call it, crossing agreements for both of those properties?

Mr. Brown: There will be. It will be, the agreement will only as far as crossing will only effect Lot 2. Because the access for Lot 3 is via Lot 2. Lot 2 will have no rights onto Lot 3.

Mr. Hughes: They’ll both have to be able to cross over and access them.

Mr. Brown: That’s correct. That’s part of the Planning Board process. We won’t be able to get final approval and file the maps until all of those documents are submitted to the Planning Board attorney and signed off. 

Mr. Hughes: So, you have no easements there now. You’re proposing that easement. 

Mr. Brown: That’s correct. Yes, we’re essentially cleaning it up. We’re taking both residences off of existing wells and servicing them with the Town water which is available in Devito Drive.

Mr. Hughes: And, what about the sewer?

Mr. Brown: These houses are presently on septic systems. The septic systems are functioning and we’ve done a substantial amount of soil testing on Lot 3 and have actually found some very good soils.

Mr. Hughes: So, they’ll remain on septic and there will be water service provided to all of those buildings or just the two residences?

Mr. Brown: The Moon is currently on Town water. So, yes, all buildings on all the lots that come from the parent parcel will be serviced by Town water on the conclusion of the subdivision.

Mr. O’Brien: There is no sewer in that area.

Mr. Brown: There is no sewer.

Mr. Hughes: There is no sewer in that area, not even out on 9W?

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Brown: No, we would love to have it there.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed.

(Time Noted – 8:25 PM)
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Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Michael O’Brien, 5266 Route 9W is seeking an interpretation of 185 - 19 – C. It’s my interpretation that if you’re looking for a subdivision, then all of those lots must meet all of the current Zoning. That’s my opinion; I don’t know how the rest of the Board feels. Can we have further discussion on that interpretation?  

Mr. Manley: I would agree if you’re subdividing it has to meet. 

Mr. McKelvey: I agree too.


Ms. Drake: So, do I.

Mr. Kunkel: Agreed.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hmm.

Chairperson Cardone: So, we have a motion to that effect?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Now let’s look at the variance, this is a Type II Action under SEQRA, seeking an area variance for front yard setbacks for an existing non-conforming building on a 3 lot subdivision. Do I have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: Do we have to reserve this one because of 9W, or no?

Chairperson Cardone: That is correct. We also did not get a report back from Orange County Department of Planning.

Mr. Brown: This was referred by Planning Board for this one.

Mr. Hughes: It doesn’t make any difference.

Mr. McKelvey: Doesn’t make any difference.

Ms. Drake: That’s by the Town of Newburgh Planning Board, not the Orange County.

Mr. Brown: Town of Newburgh Planning Board referred it to Orange County already.

Mr. Hughes: They have to.

Mr. McKelvey: They have to.

Mr. Hughes: It’s not a matter of choice.

Mr. Brown: I just thought it was the same referral.

Mr. Manley: But, they referred it for the subdivision, for them to look at the subdivision not necessarily what you’re coming here for. So, we had to refer it to what you are coming here for.

Mr. Brown: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: So, we will reserve decision on this pending the Report from the Orange County Department of Planning.

Mr. Brown: O.K. Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 10:00 PM)
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Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area sizes for a 27 Lot Cluster Development. Utilities: Cluster Developments with lots less than 1-acre shall be served by public water and sewer.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next application, which is held over from our October 26 meeting, Vito Ponesse.

Mr. Marti: Yes, thank you. For the record, my name is Craig Marti. At the last Zoning Board meeting we actually presented the Ponesse parcel, which consists of 102 acres roughly, which represents the northern portion of the map as it’s shown here. The next item on the Agenda is actually an adjoining parcel which is owned under a separate ownership and consists of, I believe, it’s about a 68 acre parcel to the south of the Ponesse parcel. Having gone through the proposal for with regards to the application is basically a request to waive a requirement to the Clustering Provisions wherein we can present to the Planning Board a as of right building plan which is shown in this exhibit.

And, when we presented these to the Planning Board, it was requested by the Planning Consultants and by the Planning Board to consider a clustering of the subdivisions such that we can reduce the lot sizes, put the houses closer together and subsequently utilize an area of the lot in this area as well as this area. Having evaluated the Zoning provisions with respect to the Clustering Provisions there was a requirement that if the resultant lots were less than one acre in size that we would need Town water and Town sewer for those. As I explained at the last meeting, there were some questions with regards to the process, which we went through. The process which we will have to go through even after this Board makes a determination is that provided we get the variance we’re seeking, we will have to present to the Planning Board as an of right building plan to establish a lot count which we can build regardless of the presence of any variance, under the existing Code, the existing Town Zoning Ordinances, the sketch plans which have been developed show 21 lots which are proposed on the Ponsesse parcel and 16 lots which are proposed on the Biagini parcel to the south. In researching the Clustering Provision when we found a problem with smaller lots, the existing Zoning requires us to have 40,000 sq ft lots, the 1-acre requirement would actually be 43,000 in excess of 43,000 so we would actually have to go larger with lots in order to cluster them and move them closer together. We approached the Town Board to see if, in fact, they would consider a Zoning change with regards to this issue. At that meeting, the Town Board discussed it and we gave the presentation much like I gave at the last Zoning Board meeting and the Board wrote a letter, authorized Wayne Booth to write a letter of support for this project. There was some question with regards to the minutes of the meeting and the wording of the Supervisor’s letter wherein the minutes reflected the Supervisors support of the project but didn’t specifically mention the other Board Members. In response to Mr. Manley’s question regarding I have researched and obtained a copy of the Town Board tape, the audio tape, at which time Councilwoman Greene clearly indicated although she is not of Cluster Development in all instances, she felt that with the layout of this property and the proposal as we presented it to them and how we subsequently presented it to you, she was in support of it in this instance. Councilman Piaquadio echoed those comments. I do have the tape from that meeting if you’d like to hear that tonight. Councilman Benedict also showed his support of the project and the proposal as it was presented and Supervisor Booth also chimed in. The dissenting opinion was from Mr. Woolsey who during the meeting seemed to express a concern that he just didn’t like the clustering as a concept or a planning tool. So, what we’re looking to do, in a nutshell, is to establish the number of lots we can build and then utilize the topography, minimize the impacts on the wetlands, minimize the need for permits which are doable, which we can get through the DEC and subsequently develop the area of the parcel in the back portion which is higher in topography and has some very nice soils likewise with the area where these lots are shown. And then, utilize the soil conditions; design the septic systems and the wells to serve the properties in conformance with the Health Department regulations and then draw the property lines around those areas where it is suitable to build the houses on smaller lots. The lots as presented, there was questions as far as the size, the lots, the smallest lots that are currently shown are proposed are roughly a half acre. The actual size will be determined in conjunction with the Planning Board and the actual layout of the septic systems and the wells to serve the properties. Another outstanding question was the amount of wetlands that Mr. Hughes raised at the meeting. With regards to the Ponesse parcel, the entire parcel is a little over 101 acres, the total wetlands on that parcel are 54 acres, the total disturbance based on the as of right building plan was .8 acres or just under an acre of wetland area and just under an acre the buffer area. It was actually about .8 acres of each. So, we have about a 1.6 or 1.7 acre disturbance of the wetland and buffer areas to cross, get access to the build able area of the lot and we’ve also minimized our impact by picking narrow spots of the wetlands for the roadway and at one point we’ve actually utilized an area where there’s an existing culvert and an existing farm road to the back portion of the property. With regards to the Fairview Homes, it’s roughly 62 acres in size or a little under 62, the total wetland area there is 22 acres, the disturbance there, the total wetland and buffer disturbance, the wetlands is roughly .14 acres where we cross it here and where we have a little bit where we hit it in this area. We are basically utilizing an existing access road to the old farm, which causes this to be mostly buffer area. So, the buffer area impact is 1.1 acres. So, with the Fairview Homes they have about 1.25 acres on the wetlands and the buffer area. So, those will have to addressed through the DEC and permitted accordingly and whatever mitigated measures we have to take with them, we will have to implement regardless of whether we build it in an as of right condition or if we build it with a Clustered Provision. So, basically what we’re looking to do is build the same number of lots whether they’re spread out throughout the 160 acres or whether we utilize the build able areas, maximize the development potential of the areas where it’s the most suitable to build, foregoing some other areas that are suitable and usable but for the sake of conserving the green-space and conserving the open area we would consolidate the same number of lots on a smaller area of the property.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a current map that shows the 100 Year Flood Plain in this area?

Mr. Marti: No, I don’t. The 100 Year Flood Plain, I believe would be located down in the swamp area somewhere because there is a big change of topography between the main flow channels of the wetland area and where we are on the map. Now that obviously would be utilized and checked through the Planning Board process and that would be analyzed and presented to the Planning Board regardless of the type of subdivision we proceed with and whether or not we obtain our variance tonight.

Mr. Hughes: The reason I bring that subject up, I happen(ed) to live in the (that) house (at one time) a little bit west of where that drive goes in off of North Plank Road and where Candy Lane exists now was a dog-leg in the Old Route 300. The stone bridge down on 300 right before you get to East Rock Cut Road in the spring, on five times in my lifetime, which hasn’t been that long, has been right up to the top of the Road there. And, that whole area that you’re pointing to there … leave that where it is, please … where the furthest west gray area indicates your wetland there, by your little finger there, right there and it goes north from there. I’ve been there in the spring when the water was up to the floorboards in the main farmhouse and over the top of that roadway that you’ve got pushing back there. So, I can’t be convinced that, with either a Cluster or an as built right, that you’ve addressed this properly because I happen to know where that water travels to and granted there are higher topographies on the west end of that property but that whole basin there from Candy Lane right on up halfway to that driveway, where you have those lines that go across the driveway there, the gray lines, the water goes all the way back into there.  No, further up.

Mr. Marti: Right, right.

Mr. Hughes: See where you have those four lines going across? The gray lines?

Mr. Marti: Right here.

Ms. Drake: The overhead wires, the power lines.

Mr. Marti: Oh, the power lines, O.K.

Mr. Hughes: The water goes all the way further past there. When the tide comes in, in the Spring, if you’ve got a heavy snow and a March rain and an April rain, that whole field floods right on over to where that first wetland area is. 

Mr. Marti: Right, and I don’t dispute that would be an issue that the Planning Board would have to address with regards to any point of access with regards to the elevations of the road and the design of the roadway would be a separate issue from the application for a variance with regards to the Application of Zoning. The Planning Board will put us through a very stringent test with regards to the drainage, the traffic, and the other environmental impacts that they consider. We are also well aware that we’ll have a DEC involvement with regards to the permits for construction within the buffer area. Our preliminary meetings with the DEC have indicated that since this is an existing access road to the farm that that would be their preferred point of ingress and egress to that. But, the exact design details would be subject to discussion at the Planning Board and I would be glad to further that that discussion at that time.

Mr. Manley: Craig, I’d like to touch on a couple of topics if I could. As you said earlier, you could have went ahead with this as an as built layout, correct? 

Mr. Marti: Yes.

Mr. Manley: However, it was the Planning Board’s recommendation to steer you more towards Clustering which, the concern that I have is, under most circumstances and what I’m really trying to grapple with this is under most circumstances, Clustering would fit perfectly if this wasn’t and again this is my opinion, if there wasn’t wetlands. But, there are significant wetlands here that really people are not going to be able to enjoy. The idea of clustering is so that there’s open space preserved so that people have the ability to enjoy it; it’s forever green. Here you are clustering to save space in something that people can’t use which is wetlands. So, I would say, just go with the as of right built and make the size of the lots 1 acre as required by Zoning. And, you don’t even have to come before the Zoning Board. The concern that I have is that the variance that is being sought isn’t for one or two lots. We are looking at a significant request, a significant variance which I have concerns with granting that significant of a request. I’ve talked to a couple of Planners, I’ve discussed this, that’s why I’m glad I had some time to kind of digest it and the number of Planners that I spoke to did say to me that Clustering is to preserve good open space, generally not wetlands. So, that’s why I don’t know why the Planning Board wants to conserve or create Clustering for stuff that’s in wetlands.

Mr. Marti: Well, I hesitate to speak for the Board, for the Planning Board or the Town’s Planning Consultants. But my feeling is that by minimizing the patchwork type of development that would be required to build on the build able areas in the non-wetland areas. We have areas where we’d have to use existing access road for the utilities and to obtain access to a building site, which is remote from the other road, which is remote from the other homes in the development. We would have some longer driveway situations in order to access flag lots, which are a right of access in a way to build the property.

Mr. Manley: There’s definitely tradeoffs, I fully understand where you’re coming from, the big concern I have is you’re going from a 40,000 sq ft lot or a full acre to, you’re requesting half of that, to pretty much half an acre for a number of the lots.

Mr. Marti: Right. We’re requesting a smaller lot in the individual cases. A smaller building lot, a smaller lot footprint, however, the density, in the overall density of the subdivision will remain the same whether it’s built in an as of right condition or whether it’s built with a Clustering Provision. So, when the Planning Board requested we pursue that avenue or consider that, we based upon their request, we looked into what would be required to do that. We approached the Town Board; the Town Board was supportive of the project but were very vocally supportive. And they indeed asked me, they said, Craig, do you need our letter or do you need a referral from the Town Board to go to the Zoning Board?  And, I said no. We don’t need that. However, if this Board doesn’t like the concept on this particular project, you we basically went there first asking them just to change the Zoning, take that one sentence out of the Code. They did not want to do that on a carte blanche basis. They clearly didn’t want to open that whole Zoning Code up to that type of application in every instance. But they were, with the exception of one Councilman, vocally supportive of the application of the Clustering Provision in this instance. The soil conditions where the lots are shown in the Clustered Development would become the controlling factor. All of the same setback regulations between the wells and septic systems, the size of the septic systems would all be the same and based upon the soils conditions which would be reviewed by both the Health Department, at the County level, as well as, the Planning Board’s consultants. So, we’re basically looking to utilize the building and utilize the soils and the topography of the land to build in a responsible manner in keeping in consistency with the Health Department regulations and the type of development that we want to put there based on the types of soils that we encounter there. Rather than, we basically want to build what the land is capable of supporting in those areas rather than a strict adherence to a number that was picked upon by the Town Board for the Zoning in that area.

Mr. Manley: Well, I guess the big question to ask the Town Board is, the one’s that supported the referral or support the project is, why would they support something that’s inconsistent with the Master Plan. After they went ahead and made it very clear that they wanted one acre Zoning in that portion of the Town by changing the Zoning Code completely, why all of a sudden now are they now supporting something that now contradicts that philosophy?

Mr. Marti: Well, the 40,000 sq ft requirement predates the current revisions to the, you know, the current re-zoning revisions, the latest rounds of Zoning revisions, since the implementation of the Master Plan have dealt with other areas of the Town, they haven’t touched this 40,000 sq ft Zone in this area.

Mr. Manley: But just south of that, anything to the west of the NY State Thruway, Interstate 87, O.K. and north of 17K went from R-2 to R-1, R-3 to R1 and it borders very close to that area, Lakeside Road near the ball field, the Little League field, I believe that went from potentially – I believe that also parts of that went to R-1. Chapel Road went to R-1 from I think R-2. So, there were some significant changes there and that’s why their statement contradicts their philosophy. 

Mr. Marti: Right, I believe that the Board, the Board basically has looked at the Town, they redone the Master Plan through various lengthy period of public involvement with input from everyone basically for the Master Plan. And, they have subsequently adopted new Zoning in parts of the Town. This isn’t an area where they were doing it. So, I don’t want to speak for them, I am not going to extrapolate why they drew the line here versus there. But, it’s really a matter of their decision as the Town. Their responsibility is to draw the lines and draw the Zoning lines. And, in this instance, having discussed the aspects of the project under which we were designing it, the Town Board was supportive of this application of the Clustering Provisions, which do exist, even in the new Master Plan. Basically the Clustering Provisions are becoming a feature of most Master Plans as they are written and re-written and re-evaluated to give the Planning Boards flexibility in regards to the layouts of some of the subdivisions under certain circumstances. 

Mr. Manley: Orange County also, Orange County Department of Planning also did notate that it was contradictory to our Master Plan, to the Town’s Master Plan, as well as, they had some concerns with respect to the clustering, in this particular instance. Not to say that in another project or in another area this may definitely fit. I just don’t see, again this is just speaking from my perspective I just don’t see it in this particular sense fitting. That’s just my opinion.

Mr. Hughes: Am I next?

Mr. Marti: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: We’ve been through this before and most word for word you said what you said tonight and has your client or your applicant considered any other alternative methods? We had a problem with the projects may never come together and enjoy those same road connections that we talked about. Has that been addressed?

Mr. Marti: Well the clients …

Mr. Hughes: Yes or no?

Mr. Marti: No. It’s basically …

Mr. Hughes: Let me continue on with the list and you can yes or no me and then if you want to expound afterwards, because we’re burning up a lot of time here on the same thing, again. First of all, you’ve got no water and sewer and that’s a prerequisite for Cluster. You’re not going to have water and sewer, yes or no?

Mr. Marti: That’s not a … you’re correct we have no water and sewer on this. But, however though …


Mr. Hughes: Let me finish, you’ve had your floor, now I’ve got the floor. All right, we’ll go through this and get this over with tonight. You’ve got a lot of problems with this thing. You’re talking about dedicating open space. No, you’re avoiding wetlands. So, the flip-flop and the terminology and all the stuff here, this thing isn’t coming together. We’re doing this here. Do you want to turn this thing together or do you want to stay out here? There is no water and sewer. You’re looking for half-acre lots. Go with the as of right way building the project and don’t disturb any more wetlands than you have to. You’re saying on one project you got 102 acres, half of it you can’t even build on. I asked you at the last meeting, what’s the real number of total build able lots? You never gave me an answer. So, now you’re asking us to give you a variance on something that’s a three-headed monster with no guarantee that the two things are ever going to be joined together with a common road. You’ve got a 900 ft overage on the maximum allowable on your cul de sac to begin with and you’re trying to squirt through all of this stuff here. This is crazy.

Mr. Marti: No, that’s absolutely a false statement.

Mr. Hughes: No, it’s not.

Mr. Marti: The proposal is …

Mr. Hughes: 700 ft over?

Mr. Marti: The proposal as I had presented before was to develop the lands as a private road under which there is no requirement for us to limit the lengths of our cul de sacs. We indicated that, in the future, should they both be constructed the Town Board had indicated it would be their preference and the Planning Board in their due diligence would request or require us to allow provisions. And, that would be whether or not they were both on the table at the same time or not. The Planning Board often requires us to consider access and the future possibility of connecting a larger portion of property to an adjoining parcel if it has development potential there. That’s happened regardless of whether the other project is on the drawing board or not. And, basically as two separate business entities are looking at this as two projects. There is a …

Mr. Hughes: But, that doesn’t improve the position of either of the applicants and it doesn’t improve our position on making a better decision. You got two things floating out of here, you’re asking us to do too many things where there’s too many unknowns. That’s my opinion. 

Mr. Marti: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I concur with my colleague, Mr. Manley. There is too much stuff here and none of it’s good.

Mr. McKelvey: You take the cul de sacs alone, supposing, I don’t know what sizes houses you’re going to put in here, supposing you had to get a Ladder Truck  in there …

Mr. Hughes: How could you turn it around?

Mr. McKelvey: How are you going to turn it around? 

Mr. Marti: But, the road layout in the cul de sacs are represented in the as of right plan and they really don’t change much in the Clustering concept but we will be locating the houses closer together and we will locating smaller building lots. But, the overall road length and the access points do not vary from one proposal to the other. So, when we presented this to the Boards, their concurrence of both the Planning Board and the Town Board was steer us toward this, in this direction, which is why we came to this Board to ask for such a variance. Had neither Board requested us to pursue the Clustering Provision we would have proceeded with the as of right plan, and, gone forward with the planning process. We’re basically here as a reflection of what the Town Planning Board and the Town Board has asked us to do and actually expressed their support in our approaching this Board. So, that’s why we came here. We fully understand that it’s this Boards discretion to grant the requested variance or not. The bottom line will be that we either end up with a subdivision, which looks somewhat like this with modifications as we go through those planning processes and the planning procedures and the engineering of the lots or something that looks more akin to this. The same number of lots whether we get through the as of right plan and determine that there is a total of 36 lots or as we get through the as of right plan and there is a total of 29 lots that will be the driving force under which we can develop the Cluster Provision if we get the variance. So, the number of houses and the overall density of the parcels will not change regardless of which way we want, which way we go, it’s a matter of whether or not the houses are built closer together in a more neighborly configuration or whether they’re spread out throughout the usable portions, where those portions exist on those two properties.

Mr. Hughes: Well, it’s been my experience where there’s houses that are close together its not so neighborly. I would suggest that you go with your as of right build and spread them out. And, my main concern is the health and safety for the wells and the septic systems. You’re not going to avoid contaminating those wetlands or contaminating someone else’s wells by knocking sizes down and that’s enough for this project for me for tonight.

Ms. Drake: I have a question for you, Craig. Being you haven’t actually done the design for the septics for each of the individual lots yet, you don’t know on the Cluster whether the lots would actually have increased to be one acre?

Mr. Marti: We’ve done perc tests based on the as of right layout.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Marti: And, we did find very good perc tests in the back portion here which would allow us to reduce the lot sizes. Whether we get as many or whether we would have to, like where we have five shown, we may get four. Based on the actual configuration and separation requirements and we fully understand that as the designs go forward there will be some modifications. So, what the Clustering Provision allows us to do is analyze the soils, design the septic systems according to the physical parameters of the property and then effectively draw our property lines around the resultant houses and septic systems and services for those buildings.

Ms. Drake: And, do you know what size houses you are proposing on these lots?

Mr. Marti: They basically been described as three and four bedroom houses. Most of the soils can support that. We did do additional perc tests where we were thinking of clustering the lots. Where one lot, we showed one lot, instead of doing two perc tests in that area I did four, you know, so we do have the data to support that we can, we will have to do more obviously, I am sure, as we start locating them specifically, we’ll have to go back and pop some tests in where we had missed the area that was usable before. But, there is a lot of detailed engineering work that needs to be done. But, the detail engineering work will revolve around the overall concept as we proceed.

Ms. Drake: Have deep tests been done to figure out what the ground water level is at?

Mr. Marti: Yes, actually where there is no wetlands, we did deep tests that were very supportive of subsurface conditions. We did find an area, some areas of rock outcroppings, where we knew there was a rock outcroppings, where we hadn’t, so where the lots are shown are where we found good soils. We did do, even before the first sketches; we did a handful of tests on both parcels just to see what we were dealing with. I did confirm the soil map conditions were pretty close and we’ve proceeded along those lines.

Ms. Drake: For in ground systems?  

Mr. Marti: Yes.

Ms. Drake: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board?

Mr. Manley: Would there be a limitation that the applicant would be willing to make on the number of square feet per lot?

Mr. Marti: One of the applicants was here earlier and I … it’s something that we could address with them. I can discuss that even while you take your break, when you go to Executive Session, I can check and see if I can get a hold of them and see if they would be interested in that type of limitation. Obviously the size of the house is going to be pretty much limited, you know, you’re going to be looking at balancing the size of the house with the size of the lot and it could get kind of out of line with regards to the bigger houses if they were to get too excessive.

Mr. Manley: Well, a good example of where things get out of hand is, an example would be the Meadow Winds development where you have these huge houses on these very tiny lots and I believe the intent originally was to not put those ... I think the intent originally was to have like 1200 or 1800 sq ft houses. Well, instead now we are looking at 3100 sq ft houses at Meadow Winds, because the developer wanted to maximize the profit margin for each of the lots. So, I think that one of the things that I’d be looking at is if even I was going to consider going to half an acre, the size of the home on half an acre, even though you’re saying it might be 3 Bedrooms, you could still have a fairly large 3 Bedroom house.

Mr. Marti: That’s correct.

Mr. Manley: You could be looking at a 3400 sq ft house on that property and the thing is could that lot coverage area support that. And, how would that when you’ve got all of the huge houses so close to each other.

Mr. Marti: Right. Actually the overall look would be subject to the architectural review task of the Planning Board. There is an architectural review process that we would go through to not only indicate that the houses are a different colors, different shapes, different sizes. The Planning Board does have a process by which they can influence the types of house and the direction in which we develop the property. So, again it’s a lot of planning considerations, which are tasked to the Planning Board, but the flexibility the Planning Board has asked for is dependent up the variance, which we are seeking here tonight. 

Mr. McKelvey: I have to agree with you though, Jim. I mean, we don’t want this to look like another Meadow Winds. 

Mr. Hughes: What do you do about pools and sheds and decks and driveways and things like that when you start knocking those decks down and you’ve got to have a consideration cause your septic is over here, you can’t build on it. Now you’ve got a half an acre, you’ve got 100 x 200 just to give it a figure, that’s a half an acre. Where do you put it all without putting our Board here for every time you don’t have enough room on the side because your septic field and the 50% overage kills your chance for a pool, kills your chance for a garage or a shed out back. That’s crazy.

Mr. Marti: And, those are market driven trade offs which we will be making in the configuration of the lots through the planning process in which case the resulting Codes and the resultant extra space that you would utilize for those, you know the pool uses …

Mr. Manley: Yes, but Craig, the developer doesn’t have to deal with that after it’s a done deal. It’s the Town and the Zoning Board that has to deal with that …

Mr. Hughes: And, the neighbors.

Mr. McKelvey: And, the neighbors.

Mr. Manley:  … when the applicants all of a sudden want to put in an in-ground pool and they want to put a deck on and the next thing you know the Building Department says you can’t do it. Then, they have to come to the Zoning Board and they don’t understand why they are here or why it’s not allowed and it becomes a very, so it’s not just the actual approval of a variance. Does the approval of this variance create more requests for variances later on? It becomes a never-ending issue. Where if it was a bigger lot just to begin with we wouldn’t have to deal with it later on. The Planning Board looks at one issue I think Clustering but I think for me I look at more than just the Clustering. I look at what entails or happens down the road or later on in the future.

Mr. Marti: Right, and actually the enforcement and approval in the future approval mechanism, any approval that this or any other Board makes or any approval that the Planning Board makes results in enforcement conditions as the number of lots increased no matter what their configuration. So, we’re, you know, it’s basically a choice between the types of development, that the Planning Board has requested, the Town Board has enthusiastically or with the exception of one Board Member endorsed through their letter to you and I do have the tape cued so if you wanted to hear their conversation on that you can do that later. Or, whether or not you want to send us back to the Planning Board with an as of right plan.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments from the Board. Any comments or questions from the public. If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. 

Mr. Marti: O.K. Thank you for your time.

(Time Noted – 9:00 PM)
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(3-1-55) AR ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Vito Ponesse, Quaker Street and Route 300, for lot area sizes for a 27-Lot Cluster Development, utilities: Clustered Developments with lots less than 1-acre shall be served by public water and sewer. First of all, do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: Yes. Boy did we have discussion on this application. I think that we made it quite apparent to everybody the apparent flaws and stuff that exists here and I can’t imagine that it got to us for this kind of a ruling. I think the whole thing is out of order.

Mr. Kunkel: I agree.

Mr. Hughes: You have no water and no sewer and you’re looking for Clustering and we just revised, spent a lot time and money on a Master Plan to insist that these things don’t take place to avoid the problems that are created by them and I’m going to stick by that.

Mr. Kunkel: This would gut the current Zoning Law that we just passed. 

Mr. Hughes: Even before it gets to sizes of the lots and things of that nature, how could protect the water and the sewer and or the wetlands with a situation of that nature, especially with no guarantee of joining the projects together in the future.

Mr. McKelvey: And, also the purpose of the open land …

Mr. Hughes: They’re just avoiding wetlands.

Mr. McKelvey: creates wetlands not for clustering, the way it should be.

Mr. Manley: I think the County and I’ve put a lot of my decision based on what the County responded to because of the significance of the development and their concerns, I think, were the fact that it wasn’t consistent with the Town’s Master Plan. Even though the Town Board seems to be agreement that they like it, the Planning Board seems to like the project; I think if that’s the case the Town maybe then should change the Zoning Law. They were reluctant to do it, but if that’s really their desire then they should probably change the Zoning. Based on the current Zoning, I don’t feel comfortable supporting the significant variance that would be granted. And, potentially creating some type of, once we give this variance, perhaps creating more people to come before this Board looking for the similar thing. I don’t that as seeing being a …

Chairperson Cardone: We have another issue with this application that I would like this Board to address. The Planning Board sent us quite a lengthy letter and they are asking us, unlike most referrals to you for a consideration of variances, these matters are not a Type II and they are asking us to do a coordinated review under SEQRA. I don’t know the feeling of the Board on this. But, my feeling is that the Planning Board is the Lead Agency and unless we have any issues that we would like refer to them for their consideration that they take that role of Lead Agency.

Mr. Hughes: I agree as Lead Agency they should be aware of all the pitfalls and we don’t need to underline or highlight those. They should take care of it on their own. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any further discussion on that issue? 

Mr. Manley: I would agree, they should be the Lead Agency on it.

Chairperson Cardone: We’ve had discussion on this application, any further discussion? (No response) Do I have a motion for approval on this application? 

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for disapproval on this application?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Second?

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call.

Ms. Gennarelli: 


John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried. 

(Time Noted – 10:07 PM)              

ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006


(Time Noted – 9:00 PM)

VINCENT BIAGINI


NYS ROUTE 300/QUAKER STREET, NWBH






(3-1-61.2) AR ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area sizes for a 16 Lot Cluster Development. Utilities: Cluster Developments with lots less than 1-acre shall be served by public water and sewer.

Chairperson Cardone: I do have to go on to the next one, even though we covered it with this, on the applicant of Vincent Biagini, do we have any further comments or questions.

Ms. Gennarelli: May I just state that the mailings were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any comments on the Biagini application. If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with Counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight’s applications. I would ask you in the interest of time if you could step out into the Hallway and we will call you in, in a few moments.  

(Time Noted – 9:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 10:07 PM)

VINCENT BIAGINI


NYS ROUTE 300/QUAKER STREET, NWBH






(3-1-61.2) AR ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Vincent Biagini, Route 300 and Quaker Street for Lot area sizes for a 16-Lot Cluster Development.

Mr. Hughes: Does the Planning Board request the same for this?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, and …

Mr. Kunkel: And, once again, this goes counter to our current Zoning Law and I could not sit here and approve it.

Mr. Manley: The same comments that I made for the first applicant with this particular applicant are mirrored in that.

Mr. Hughes: This is basically the same project. It’s the same wetland area. It’s the same area. It’s the same quadrant in the Town, the same as the other one.

Chairperson Cardone: And, once again, we designate that the Planning Board is the Lead Agency.

Mr. Manley: Just to reiterate with this that the as of right, the applicant can go ahead and build. 

Mr. Hughes: And, with a more successful attempt to protect the wetlands than trying that other program. If you put wells and septics on that, however many properties you think you can get on build able acres. You are going to end up contaminating the neighbors’ wells and the wetlands and everything. If you’re going to have water and sewer, then I could see it. But, to go with that as of right is the way to go. 

Mr. Kunkel: You’re right.

Mr. Hughes: You spread them out and put them where you can put them and where you can’t, you leave it alone. 

Ms. Eaton: It seems to be a normal process when a young couple buys a home, the next thing you know they have children, they want more incidentals on their property for their children. They want decks, they want pools …

Mr. Hughes: And, where do you park the 3 cars later on?

Ms. Eaton: … on a half acre lot they are not going to be able to do it.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for disapproval?  

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll move for disapproval.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Chairperson Cardone: Roll call.

Ms. Gennarelli: 


John McKelvey: Yes

Brenda Drake: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried. 

(Time Noted – 10:10 PM)               

ZBA MEETING – NOVEMBER 21, 2006

END OF MEETING 
                                            (Time Noted – 10:10 PM)





Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has the minutes from last month. Do you have any additions, deletions, corrections? 

Mr. McKelvey: I didn’t see anything. We missed that one correction that we got tonight.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve the minutes? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?    

Aye all.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: I have one other item. At least one Board Member has request to attend the Zoning and Planning Breakfast briefing on Comprehensive Planning which is being held on December 14th at Williams Lake Resort in Rosendale. I would like to get this into the Finance Department, is there anyone else that’s interested in attending this? 

Mr. Hughes: Is that me? O.K.

Ms. Drake: I would like to attend.

Chairperson Cardone: Anyone else, so I can write it up with all the names on it?

Ms. Eaton: What’s the date again, Grace?

Chairperson Cardone: It’s December the 14th.

Mr. Hughes: It’s only in the morning, right?

Ms. Drake: Yes, I am checking that.

Mr. Hughes: Some of them go all day long.

Chairperson Cardone: From 7:30 to 9:00, very early in the morning.

Ms. Drake: That’s good for me, so I can go to work after that.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else? 

Ms. Eaton: Happy Thanksgiving.

All – Happy Thanksgiving.

Chairperson Cardone: I declare this meeting is closed until December 28th.

(Time Noted – 10:15PM)

